PAST SIMPLE

structure


verb “to be“

I was 


I was not/was´t 
Was I...?
Yes, I was/No, I wasn´t.

You, we, they were
You weren´t 

Were you...?
Yes, you were/No, you weren´t.

He, she, it was

He, she, it wasn´t 
Was he...?
Yes, he was.

regular verbs
I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they   




workED     

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they  
DID NOT/DIDN´T

work





DID 

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they  
work? 

(Where) 

DID

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they    
work?


irregular verbs
I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they    




saw (past form, 2nd column)

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they   

didn´t 


see.



DID 

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they  
see?

What 

DID

I, you, he, she, it, we, you, they 
see?

spelling changes for –ed ending  

- consonant + y - y changes into i + ed (worry – worried)

- vowel + y - without a change (stay – stayed) 

- one-syllable verbs ending with one vowel and one consonant (except for w,x) – we double the final consonant (stop – stopped)

- one-syllable verbs ending with two vowels or two consonant – no change (work – worked)

- two-syllable verbs ending with one vowel and one consonant stressed on the second syllable – we double the final consonant (prefer – preferred) 

- two-syllable verbs ending with -l – we double the final l (label – labelled)  

use  

1) repeated or habitual actions, usually with adverbs of frequency 

- I played tennis every week when I was a child.

2) simple completed actions in the past, usually events at a specific time, no connection with the present  - I went to school by bus yesterday.

- time expressions that refer to the present, such as this morning/week/month and today, can be used with the past simple if we think of these expressions as describing a past, completed time period, the change is not possible anymore 

- I didn´t see my boss today. (and I know I cannot see him today)

- I wrote 20 emails this morning. (and it is already afternoon)

3) completed actions, events or situations which happened over a specific period of time in the past 

- When we lived in York, my father ran a small bakery.

4) general truths about the past 

- Early clocks were usually very unreliable.

5) permanent (trvalý) situations 

- My mother taught English.

6) states 

- I believed in love at first sight when I was younger.

7) main events in narratives, actions in sequence 

- I got up, had my coffee and went to work.

8) the present in the second conditional 

- If I had a garden, I would have a dog. – now

9) present wishes after “wish”, “it’s (high/about) time”, “would rather” (when there are to subjects in the sentence) 

- I wish I had longer hair. – now

- It´s high time we went to bed.

- I would rather you stayed at home.

10) with time clauses introduced by after, when, until, as soon as, once, by the time, the minute/second/moment the past simple (or the past perfect) refers to past, completed events 

- After Dominic left (had left) school, he spent six months in India. 

- The minute I got (had got) the news about Sue I telephoned my parents. 
emphatic past simple 

- auxiliary (pomocné) verb DID also in positive sentences 

I DID work hard. 

- to emphasise (zdôrazniť) contrast (I don´t like sweets but I DID like them when I was a child.)

- to emphasise strong feeling (I DID help my mum.)

USED TO + INFINITIVE

- refers to past habits or situations (activities as well as states) which no longer occur (objavovať sa) or exist now 

- adverbs of frequency used for emphasis  and placed before used to

activity: I used to read a lot when I was younger. 

state: We always used to have a dog when I was a child.

negative: I didn’t USE TO smoke some years ago. (also I didn´t used to smoke. – in the past considered non-standard/I used not to smoke.)  
question: What did you USE TO do in the evenings when you were a teenager? (also What did you used to do…– in the past considered non-standard) 

WOULD + BARE INFINITIVE

- refers to past habits but not situations (activities but not states)

- can be used with a continuous infinitive (be + -ing) when we are referring to a habit involving actions in progress

- frequency adverbs (often, sometimes…) placed after would 

- often with time expression to avoid confusion (I would play tennis… - hral by som tenis/hrával som tenis)

activity: My brother would often play with me when we were younger.

with continuous infinitive: Whenever I went to my grandma’s house, she would be baking or cooking.  

BE USED TO and GET USED TO

1. BE USED TO + noun/-ing = be accustomed to (byť zvyknutý na - stav)

- to describe situation that is now familiar or no longer strange 

- used in different tenses

- gerund (-ing form) used after “to“ since it is a preposition in this structure 

I am used to getting up early. 

I was used to getting up early. 

I hope I will be used to getting up early until the next week. 

2. GET USED TO + noun/-ing = become accustomed to (zvyknúť si na - zmena stavu)

- to describe a process of becoming familiar with a situation 

- used in different tenses

- gerund (-ing form) used after “to“ since it is a preposition in this structure 

I am getting used to going to work. (Zvykám si na chodenie do práce.)

I have already got used to going to work. (Už som si zvykol na chodenie do práce.)

I will never get used to going to work. (Nikdy si nezvyknem na chodenie do práce.)

PAST CONTINUOUS

structure



I, he, she, it

was


working

+

you, we, they 

were


working



I, he, she, it

wasn’t / was not
working

- 

you, we, they

weren’t / were not 
working



Was 


I, he, she, it

working?

?

Were


you, we, they

working?

Where 

were/was

you/he


working?

use 

1) actions in progress at a particular moment in the past  

- I couldn’t call you at seven. I was working.

- This time last year I was taking the Advanced exam. 

2) actions in progress around a particular moment in the past 

- At the turn of the twentieth century, scientist were making many discoveries in physics. 

3) temporary situations in the past 

- At the time, I was teaching English. 

4) changing and developing situations in the past 

- I was getting frustrated. 

5) annoying or amusing past habits (with always, constantly, forever, continually...)

- She was always borrowing my things. 

6) background information in a story (for the main events we use past simple)

- It was raining outside and people were wearing coats. 

7) actions in progress over a period of time 

- I was tidying all yesterday morning. 

8) two or more actions in progress at the same time (the past simple possible as well but we prefer the past continues to emphasise the activity)
- While/When I was cooking, my mum was baking.  (cooked, baked)
9) a past situation or action which was in progress when another action (in the past simple) occurred, conjunctions – when, while, as 

- I was having breakfast when you came. 

10) after wish, it’s time, would rather 

- I wish we were travelling to London instead of Madrid. 

11) in the second conditional 

- Would you be happier if you were studying something else?

12) to make requests, suggestions and questions more polite and tentative (neistý, váhavý), often with think and wonder 
- We were wondering if you would like to join us. (= Would you like to join us?)

- Were you planning on going somewhere else later? (= Are you planning on going…?) 
PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE

structure 



I
have


seen/started (-ed, 3.st.)

+

he, she, it

has


seen/started



you, we, they 

have


seen/started



I 
haven’t

seen/started

-

he, she, it

hasn’t


seen/started



you, we, they
haven’t

seen/started



Have
I


seen/started?

?

Has 
he, she, it

seen/started?



Have
you, we, they

seen/started?

What 

have/has

you/he


seen?

use

1) recent past events with some relevance to the present (not with a specific time expr. describing past)

- They can’t afford to go on holiday – they’ve just bought a new car.  

- time expressions that refer to the present, such as this morning/week/month and today, can be used with the past simple (see the past simple) and the present perfect – if we think of them as describing a time period which includes the present moment, change is still possible   

- I haven´t seen my boss today. (and I know I may see him today, I am still at work)

- I have written 20 emails this morning. (and it is still morning and I probably will write more emails)
2) situations which started in the past and continue to the present (time expressions describing time including the present – this week, this morning,… and adverbs such as already, always, ever, never, recently, seldom, so far, still, to now, yet, lately, just…)  

- I’ve had this mobile since my birthday. 

- I have lost my keys. (Stratil som kľúče a ešte vždy neviem, kde sú.)

- I lost my keys. (Kľúče som stratil, no už aj našiel, dej už netrvá.)

3) situations when the exact time is either unknown or unimportant 

- I’ve already seen this film. 

4) situations and events which can still be changed 

- I have already read two French books. (I can read the third one.) 

5) we use either the present perfect or past simple after It’s weeks/years/ages… since to express a period of time when we haven’t done something

- It’s ages since I have been/I went to the theatre., It’s weeks since we have seen/we saw each other.
6) with another present perfect to describe two states or actions which have existed or occurred together 

- We’ve been burgled twice since we’ve lived here. 

- in a sentence which includes a time clause with since which refers to a particular point in the past we generally prefer the past simple in the time clause 

- She hasn’t been able to play tennis since she broke her arm. 

7) after the expressions this/that is/will be the first/second/third… time

- This is the second time I have eaten sushi.

8) in news reports, recent events are introduced with the present perfect, and then the past simple and other past tenses are used to give details

- The US space shuttle Atlantis has returned safely to earth. It landed in Florida this morning. 
9) with time clauses introduced by after, when, until, as soon as, once, by the time, the minute/second/moment the present perfect (or present simple) refers to future events 

- After Dominic has left (leaves) school, he will be spending six months in India. 

- I’ll contact you the minute I’ve got my exam results. 

10) British English uses the present perfect after superlatives (the best/worst, the greatest), ordinal numbers (the first, the second..) and the only 

- It’s the worst sport show I have ever seen and the first I have ever complained about. 

PRESENT PERFECT CONTINUOUS

structure 


I

  have

been 
waiting for two hours.

+
he, she, it

has

been 
waiting for two hours.


you, we, they 

have

been 
waiting for two hours.


I 
                        haven’t
been 
waiting for two hours.

-
he, she, it

hasn’t

been 
waiting for two hours.


you, we, they              haven’t
been 
waiting for two hours.



Have
I


been 
waiting for two hours?

?

Has               he, she, it
been 
waiting for two hours?



Have             you, we, they
been 
waiting for two hours?

Why

have/has

you/he

been 
waiting for two hours?

use 

1) to emphasise the duration of a situation or activity 

- He’s been working on this novel for ten years.  

- verbs such as live, work, study, teach can be used also in the present perfect simple (then it is seen as more permanent) 

- The Montague family has lived in the manor house for as long as I can remember. 

- Our daughter has been living with us for a few weeks as she’s been ill. 

2) temporary activities or situations 

- My kitchen is being redecorated so I’ve been eating at my mum’s.

- She has been spending a lot of time at the club lately.  

- People have been eating less meet recently because of the health scares. 

3) incomplete activities 

- I have been reading this book for such a long time and I haven’t finished yet.  

4) to focus on the repetition of a situation or activity (when the number of times is included, we use present perfect simple) 

- Someone’s been phoning you. (several times)

- She’s phoned about six or seven times this morning. 

5) to explain the current state/situation, to describe an event which has just finished, to draw a conclusion from what we can see, hear… 

- I am exhausted. I have been running. 

- Who’s been messing around with my papers? They are all over the place!

PAST PERFECT SIMPLE

structure



I



seen/started (-ed/3rd column.)

+

he, she, it

had


seen/started



you, we, they 




seen/started



I 



seen/started

- 

he, she, it

hadn’t


seen/started



you, we, they



seen/started




I


seen/started?

?

Had
he, she, it

seen/started?




you, we, they

seen/started?

What 

had


you/he…

seen?


use

1) situations and states before another past event or situations, situations which started in the past and continued to a later point in the past  

- I had had my car for two years before it broke down. 

- They had known each other for several years before they got married. 

- As soon as the film started, I realized I had seen it before. 

2) completed actions before a moment in the past 

- When I came home, I realized that I had left my wallet at home. 

3) completed actions where the important thing is the result at a moment in the past 

- I beat him because I had practised a lot. 

4) after that/it was the first/second… time
- It was the second time we had been abroad. 

5) after it was two years/months…/a long time since…
- It was a long time since she had last seen her old school friend.

6) when we mention the number of times 

- I had called you five time before you answered. 

7) with after,  by the time, already, as soon as, once, when, until…

- It was dark by the time I had finished repairing the roof. 

! past simple can be used if the order of events is clear

- I had a relaxing bath after I got home from work last night. 

8) with before + past perfect the action in the past simple happens first

- I left university before I had finished the course I was taking. 

- we can use this pattern for a past action which prevented a later action from happening

- She sacked him before he had had a chance to explain his behaviour. 

9) past perfect clauses with when, after can be replaced by participle clauses 

- After he had eaten his sandwich, he left. – Having eaten his sandwich, he left.

10) to report sentences in the past simple and the present perfect simple 

- She said that she had met him before.  

PAST PERFECT CONTINUOUS

structure



I

  


been 
waiting for two hours.

+

he, she, it


had

been 
waiting for two hours.



you, we, they 



been 
waiting for two hours.



I 
                        

been 
waiting for two hours.

-

he, she, it


hadn’t

been 
waiting for two hours.



you, we, they               

been 
waiting for two hours.





I


been 
waiting for two hours?

?

Had              

he, she, it

been 
waiting for two hours?



 
  you, we, they

been 
waiting for two hours?

Why

had

you/he


been 
waiting for two hours?

use 

1) actions and situations continuing up to a moment in the past (or just before the moment in the past)

- She had been writing novels for over ten years before she started to write poems. 

- if we are not interested in how long the activity went on, we can use the past continuous 

- A friend told me about a conversation she had recently overheard. Two women were discussing their…

but – When the merger was announced it became apparent that the two companies had been discussing the possibility since last year. 

2) to emphasise the duration of the activity 

- He had been working on his last novel for ten years when he finally finished it. 

3) to focus on the repetition of a situation or activity (not expressed by a number – then simple)

- Someone had been calling before you came. 

- Someone had called you three times before you came. 

4) to refer to an action which was still ongoing (prebiehajúca) at the time of the statement

- The leaves had been falling from the trees and the ground was very slippery (klzký). – listy padali

- the past perfect simple refers to a completed action 

- The leaves had fallen from the trees early that year and they were completely bare. – listy opadali 

5) with since, for 

6) to report sentences in the past continuous and the present perfect continuous

- She said she was tired because she had been tidying up the whole day. 

UNFULFILLED PAST EVENTS 

- events which were intended to take place, but which did not happen (niečo bolo v pláne a nestalo sa) 
- the past simple, the past continuous, the past perfect simple and continuous 

- verbs such as: mean to do sth, consider doing, expect to do, hope to do, intend to do, plan to do/plan on doing, think about/of doing, want to do  

- She had been thinking/was thinking of going to Iceland, but changed her mind. 

- I had hoped/I had been hoping/I hoped/I was hoping to visit the gallery before I left Florence, but it is closed on Sundays. 

be (was, were) going to 

- I was going to send you an email, but I had a few problems with my computer. 

past continuous 
- past arrangements that may or may not have taken place

- Nancy was taking the next flight to Paris so she had to cut short the interview. 
be about to

- I was about to call the doctor, but then the pain suddenly disappeared. 
be (was, were) to have + past participle

- The meeting, which was to have taken place last weekend, was unexpectedly cancelled. 

PREFERENCES ABOUT THE PAST

would like/love/prefer to + perfect infinitive 

- We would like to have stayed longer, but we had to catch the train. 

would have liked/loved/preferred to + infinitive

- We would have liked to stay longer, but we had to catch the train.
would have liked/loved/preferred to + perfect infinitive

- We would have liked to have stayed longer, but we had to catch the train.
would like/love/prefer to – different subjects – a noun or object pronoun is inserted before the infinitive 
- She would have preferred him to stay, rather than go out. 
would rather/sooner + perfect infinitive 
- We stayed in a hotel, but I’d sooner have slept in a tent.   

would rather/sooner – different subjects – the past perfect 
- Would you rather I hadn’t said anything about it to Matt. 

